

DRAFT 10/31/19

## ATTACHMENT 1

### PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY CHARTER OF THE CITY OF SUNNYVALE

The provisions of the City Charter of the City of Sunnyvale to be deleted are printed in ~~strikeout~~ type, and the new provisions to be added are printed in underscore type.

The City Charter of the City of Sunnyvale shall be amended by amending Article VI (The Council) to read as follows:

#### **Section 600. Elective Officers of the City.**

The elective officers of the City shall consist of a City Council ~~composed of seven members, consisting of six Council members and a Mayor. The term "City Council," "Council," "legislative body," or other similar terms as used in this Charter or any other provision of law shall be deemed to refer to the collective body composed of the Mayor and six City Council members unless another provision of this Charter or other law expressly provides to the contrary, or unless such interpretation would be clearly contrary to the intent and context of such other provision.~~

#### **Section 601. Term and Election.**

- (a) ~~Commencing with the general municipal election of November 2020, the City Council members shall be residents of their respective Districts, as established pursuant to Section 602, and nominated and elected only by the voters of their respective Districts. The Mayor shall be directly elected by the voters of the City. The elective officers shall be elected at the times and in the manner provided in this Charter. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Charter, members of the City Council in office at the time this Charter provision takes effect shall continue in office until the expiration of their respective terms.~~
- (b) ~~The Mayor and~~ Each member of the City Council shall be elected ~~from the City at large~~ at the General Municipal Election for a term of four years. The term shall commence at the first regular meeting in January, at which the City Council shall certify the election results, and shall continue until a successor is ~~elected and~~ qualified.
- (c) The offices of ~~Mayor and each~~ member of the Council ~~is are~~ separate elective offices to be separately filled at any election. The person receiving the highest number of all the votes cast for a particular elective office at any election shall be deemed and declared elected to that office.

~~Each Council seat shall be designated by a number from 1 through 7 and shall be known as "Councilmember Seat Number \_\_\_\_." The designation given to each elective office shall be used in all elections, nomination papers, certificates of election, and all other papers pertaining to such office, and to designate the incumbent of such office.~~

~~— Seats numbered 1, 2, and 3 shall be filled at the General Municipal Election held in 1977 and every fourth year thereafter. Seats numbered 4, 5, 6, and 7 shall be filled at the General Municipal Election held in 1979 and every fourth year thereafter.~~

DRAFT 10/31/19

~~—Commencing in 2016, Seats numbered 4, 5, 6, and 7 shall be filled at the General Municipal Election held in 2016, and every fourth year thereafter, and Seats numbered 1, 2, and 3 shall be filled at the General Municipal Election held in 2018, and every fourth year thereafter.~~

~~—Notwithstanding the four year City Councilmember term limit set forth above, City Councilmembers in Seats 4, 5, 6 and 7, whose term of office would have expired in January 2016 when their successors were elected and qualified, shall continue in their offices an additional year until their successors are elected and qualified at the first regular meeting in January 2017.~~

~~—Notwithstanding the four year City Councilmember term limit set forth above, City Councilmembers in Seats 1, 2, and 3, whose term of office would have expired in January 2018, when their successors were elected and qualified, shall continue in their offices an additional year until their successors are elected and qualified at the first regular meeting in January 2019.~~

### **Section 602. City Council Districts.**

District-based elections established in accordance with this section shall commence in the November 2020 general election. To elect the members of the City Council commencing with the November 2020 general municipal election, the City shall be divided into single-member districts equal in number to the number of City Council members, exclusive of the Mayor (each such district a “District” and, collectively, “Districts”). The City Council shall by ordinance establish the names and respective boundaries of the Districts that shall be used for the election of the Council members, and the transition plan from at-large elections to District elections. The Districts shall comply with applicable laws and such other permissible criteria as the City Council may specify.

### **Section 602603. Qualifications.**

(a) No person shall be eligible to hold office as the Mayor or a member of the City Council unless he/she shall be a registered voter of the City at the time of his/her nomination or appointment, and, with respect to members of the City Council elected by District, of the District of which he or she seeks election at the time of, and for the thirty-day period immediately preceding, filing of his or her nominating papers or such other equivalent declaration of candidacy as may be required or authorized by law, or at the time of, and for the thirty-day period immediately preceding, his or her appointment to such office.

(b) Every member of the City Council or candidate for City Council elected by District shall be and remain a qualified voter in the District to which he or she seeks election from the time of, and for the thirty-day period immediately preceding, filing nomination papers or such other equivalent declaration of candidacy as may be required or authorized by law, throughout the full term of his or her office, if elected or appointed in lieu of election.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a candidate shall not file nomination papers for more than one City elective office for the same election. No person shall be a candidate for more than one elective office.

~~No incumbent member of the Council shall be a candidate for a Council seat other than the one which that person then holds.~~

DRAFT 10/31/19

**Section 604. Term limits.**

(a) No person shall be eligible to serve as Mayor or a member of the Council for more than ~~two~~ three successive four-year elective terms. Subject to the preceding sentence, no person may serve as Mayor for more than two four-year terms, and no person may serve as a member of the Council for more than two four-year terms.

(b) Any person who has served ~~two~~ three successive four-year elective terms as Mayor or member of the Council as permitted by this subsection (a) above shall not serve again until at least four years have passed since that person last held office. Any Mayor or member of the Council elected or appointed to a term of two (2) years or more shall constitute a four (4) year term for the purposes of this section. Any person who fills an unexpired term of not more than two years in length shall, however, be eligible to serve two successive four-year terms after the expiration of the unexpired term which he/she filled.

(c) Any person who serves a four-year elective term and is either not re-elected or does not run for ~~re~~-election for a second or third successive term is eligible to serve after two years have passed since that person last held office as Mayor or Councilmember but is not eligible to run for a second or third successive term. Subject to the provisions of subsection (a) above, Any person may serve as Mayor or Councilmember for eight-twelve years in any twelvesixteen-year period, unless elected or appointed to serve an unexpired term of less than two years in length as provided in this section.

**Section 6053. Compensation.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].

**Section 6064. Vacancies.**

(a) In addition to any other cause from which vacancies in the City Council may occur, the office of the Mayor or a member of the Councilmember shall become vacant when ~~a member that~~ official:

- (1) Resigns or dies;
- (2) Is absent from all regular meetings of the Council for a period of sixty days consecutively from and after the last regular Council meeting attended by such member, unless by permission of the Council expressed in its official minutes;
- (3) Is convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude;
- (4) Ceases to be an elector of the City of Sunnyvale;
- (5) Ceases to maintain his/her principal place of residence within the City limits, and/or within the applicable District boundaries for a member elected by District, during such ~~member's~~ official's term of office; or
- (6) Is involuntarily removed pursuant to Article II of the Constitution of the State of California, as may be amended from time to time.

(b) In the event of a vacancy ~~on the City Council in the office of Mayor or Councilmember,~~ the Council shall officially declare the seat-office vacant within thirty days of the commencement of any vacancy.

(c) Within sixty days of the date the seat-office is officially declared vacant, the City Council shall, by affirmative vote of at least four of the remaining Councilmembers, elect to fill the vacancy by appointment or by calling an election.

DRAFT 10/31/19

- (d) If the vacancy is filled by appointment, the appointee shall hold office until the next General Municipal Election or Special Municipal Election consolidated with the next statewide election, whichever occurs sooner, and a successor is elected and qualified. The Councilmember then elected shall serve for the remainder of any unexpired term, and until a successor is elected and qualified.
- (e) The City Council shall adopt an ordinance establishing a public process for appointment.
- (f) If the City Council elects to fill the vacancy by election or fails to fill the vacancy by appointment, it shall call an election to be held within two hundred and forty days of the date the vacancy is declared.
- (g) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, the City Council shall not make an appointment to fill a vacancy if the appointment would result in more than two ~~Council~~of the members or one Councilmember and the Mayor currently serving on the Council as appointees, and shall call a Special Municipal Election to be held within one hundred and eighty days from the date the Council declares the vacancy.

#### **Section 60~~7~~5. Presiding Officer. Mayor.**

~~At the first regular meeting in January, at which the City Council shall certify the election results, following each General Municipal Election, and at the first regular meeting in January every two years thereafter, the City Council shall select one of its members as its presiding officer, who shall have the title of Mayor. Such selection shall be by motion of the City Council. The Mayor shall be the presiding officer of the City Council and have a voice and vote in all its proceedings. He/she shall be the official head of the City for all ceremonial purposes. He/she shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by this Charter or as may be imposed by the City Council consistent with his/her office. The Mayor shall serve in such capacity for a term of two years from and after which the appointment is made, and until a successor is selected; provided, that a person can continue to serve in the capacity of Mayor only while that person remains as a member of the City Council. In the event of a vacancy in the office of Mayor, the City Council shall select one of its members to serve as Mayor for the remainder of the unexpired term.~~

~~Notwithstanding the two-year term set forth above, in order to facilitate the transition to even year elections, the Councilmember selected to serve as Mayor at the first regular meeting in January 2016 shall serve a one-year term rather than a two-year term. Commencing with the January 2017 selection, the two-year mayoral term will resume in accordance with the paragraph above.~~

~~The Mayor may be removed from such office prior to expiration of his/her term by a motion of the City Council adopted by the affirmative votes of at least five members of the City Council.~~

DRAFT 10/31/19

**Section ~~60~~86. Vice Mayor.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].

**Section 609. Redistricting.**

(a) Following each decennial federal census, and at other such times as provided by law, the City Council shall, by ordinance, adjust the boundaries of any or all the Districts of the City so that the Districts shall be as nearly equal in population as may be, consistent with law applicable to the creation and rearrangement of the boundaries of local districts.

(b) The City Council shall adopt an ordinance establishing a public process for redistricting. Such ordinance shall be adopted in sufficient time for redistricting following release of the 2020 federal Census.

(c) No change in the boundary of any District shall abolish or terminate the term of office of any City Council member prior to the expiration of the term of office for which the member was elected or appointed in lieu of election, notwithstanding any other provision of this Article.

**Section-~~607~~610. Powers.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].

**Section ~~608~~611. Regular Meetings.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].

**Section-~~609~~612. Special Meetings and Emergency Meetings.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].

**Section ~~610~~613. Place of Meetings.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].

**Section ~~611~~614. Quorum.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].

**Section ~~612~~615. Election and Qualification of Councilmembers.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].

**Section ~~613~~616. Proceedings.**

[Renumbered; text unchanged].